
Agenda
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, April 23, 2019  Held at 6:00 PM.

Sumter County Administration Building – County Council Chambers
Third Floor, 13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
   1) Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council

2. INVOCATION: Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: April 23, 2019

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:     Regular Meeting Held On 
   1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, April 9, 2019

6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 

  

1) RZ1904 – Second Reading/Public Hearing  Beulah Cuttino Road (County)  Request To Rezone A +/
74.69 Acre Parcel Located On Beulah Cuttino Road From Residential15 (R15) To Agricultural Conservation 
(AC). The Property Is Represented By Tax Map #2220001013. (Council Will Hold A Public Hearing Prior To 
Action On Second Reading Of This Rezoning Request.)

7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:

  
1) 19907 – An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 619, 620 And 623 Of 
Chapter 6, Article II, Relating To Dogs And Other Animals.  (Council Will Take Action Third Reading 
Immediately After The Public Hearing Or During Old Business.)

8. NEW BUSINESS:

   1) Recognition of Ms. Valerie A. Brunson, Sumter County’s Veteran Affairs Officer, For Being Named The 2019 
Veterans Service Officer of the Year By The S. C. Association Of County Veteran Service Officers.

  
2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  

9. OLD BUSINESS:

  

1) 19907 – Third Reading  An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 619, 620 
And  623  Of  Chapter  6,  Article  II,  Relating  To  Dogs  And  Other  Animals.

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
   1) Budget Workshop To Be Held At 5:00 p.m. On Tuesday, April 23, 2019, In County Council’s Chambers.



Agenda – Regular Meeting  Sumter County Council
April 23, 2019
Page 2 of 2

   2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences; And Any Other Council 
Comments.

11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
   1) Sumter County Sheriff's Office Monthly Report

   2) Mayor's Prayer Breakfast

   3) Law Enforcement Prayer Breakfast

   4) Mary McLeod Bethune Festival/Celebration

   5) Building Department Report

   6) Planning Commission Meeting

12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:

13. PUBLIC COMMENT:

14. ADJOURNMENT:

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County Is Prepared To Make Accommodations For Individuals Needing Assistance To 
Participate In Our Programs, Services, Or Activities.

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, notice of the meeting, date, time, place of meeting and agenda was posted on the bulletin 
board at the County Administrative Office, 13 East Canal Street, Sumter, SC and the Sumter County website www.sumtercountysc.org 

under Our Council Agenda/Minutes. In addition, the agenda electronically sent to newspapers, radio stations, television, and concerned 
citizens

http://www.sumtercountysc.org


Minutes
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, April 9, 2019 -- Held at 6:00 p.m.

County Administration Building -- County Council Chambers
13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

(The recording equipment failed; therefore, there is no recording on these minutes.)

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  James T. McCain, Jr.; Chairman; James R. Byrd, Jr., Vice Chairman; 
Artie Baker; Eugene R. Baten, Charles T. Edens, Vivian Fleming McGhaney, Chris Sumpter II.

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  Gary Mixon, Johnathan W. Bryan, Lorraine Dennis, Mary W. Blanding, Helen 
Roodman, Allen Dailey.

MEDIA PRESENT:  The Item, Rachel Pittman

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:  Approximately 18 members of the public were present.  

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman James T. McCain, Jr., called the meeting to order.  

INVOCATION: Councilman Vivian Fleming McGhaney gave the invocation. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  All in attendance repeated the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Chairman McCain asked the Clerk to Council if there were any changes to the agenda.  
The Clerk said there were no changes, however, the executive session on the agenda will be held after Public 
Comment.  Then the Chairman called for a motion on approving the agenda as printed.

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Sumpter, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant approval to the agenda as presented, noting that Council will have 
an executive session at the end of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Regular Meeting Tuesday, March 26, 2019 
Chairman McCain called for a motion on approving the minutes of Council’s March 26, 2019 meeting.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Sumpter, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant approval to the agenda as presented, noting that Council will have 
an executive session at the end of the meeting.

LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
Planned Development/Rezoning Requests

(1) RZ-19-04 -- First Reading -- Beulah Cuttino Road (County) -- Request To Rezone A +/-74.69 Acre Parcel 
Located On Beulah Cuttino Road From Residential-15 (R-15) To Agricultural Conservation (AC). The Property 
Is Represented By Tax Map # 222-00-01-013.

Helen Rodman, Planning Zoning Administrator, presented this request to Council.  She stated that this request 
is to rezone a +/- 74.69 acre parcel from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC).  The applicant 
is requesting this rezoning in order to create a new 2.95 acre lot for the purpose of building a house.  The 
proposed dimensions of this new lot are not in conformance with R-15 development standards. However, the 
dimensions are in conformance with Agricultural Conservation (AC) Development Standards.  Also, the 
applicant has tentative future plans to construct an accessory structure (a personal work shop) towards the 
western side of the future 74.63 acre parcel. 



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 2

The proposed subdivision does not meet required R-15 lot width to depth ratio requirements that are applicable 
to residential lots. Residential lots in the AC district are exempt from this standard, per Article 8.e.13.f – Lots of 
the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance.  Furthermore, the proposed subdivision does 
not meet the R-15 lot minimum width requirement.  R-15 lots are required to have a minimum lot width of 100ft., 
per Article 3.b.5.a.  – Lot Requirements (Minimum) of the Sumter County Zoning and Development Standards 
Ordinance.

Mrs. Roodman stated that the applicant has informed the Planning staff that there are no further plans to develop 
the property other than to build a house and accessory structure on the proposed new lots. The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the request as presented.  After comments from Council and the Planning 
staff, Council took action on first reading.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Byrd, seconded by Councilman Sumpter, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant first reading approval to this rezoning request as presented.  

 (2) RZ-19-01—Third Reading -- 4980-4984 Cane Savannah Road (County) -- Request To Rezone A +/- 5.0 
Acre Parcel Located At 4980-4984 Cane Savannah Road From Agricultural Conservation (AC) To General 
Commercial (GC) Or In The Alternative, General Residential (GR). The Property Is Represented By Tax Map 
# 157-00-04-001.     

Helen Roodman also presented this proposed rezoning request to Council for third reading consideration.  She 
stated that there have been no changes to this rezoning request since first reading.  Then the Chairman called for 
a motion on third reading.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baten, seconded by Vice Chairman Byrd, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant third reading approval to this rezoning request as presented. 
 

 (3) OA-19-02 -- Third Reading -- Outdoor Pistol, Rifle, Or Skeet Ranges In HI District (County)  – (19-906) 
-- Amend Article 3 Section 3.L.4: Heavy Industrial District (Special Exception), Exhibit 5: Permitted And 
Conditional Uses In The Commercial Industrial, Agricultural, And Conservation Districts, And Article 5 Section 
5.B.3.F: Special Design Review Criteria (Outdoor Pistol, Rifle Or Skeet Range) Of The Sumter County Zoning 
& Development Standards Ordinance In Order To Include The Outdoor Pistol, Rifle Or Skeet Range (SIC Code 
7999) Use As A Special Exception In The Heavy Industrial (HI) Zoning District.  

The Zoning Administrator, Mrs. Roodman, presented this proposed ordinance amendment to Council for third 
reading consideration.  Mrs. Roodman stated that there have been no changes to this Ordinance Amendment 
since first reading.  After her presentation, Council took action on third reading.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Byrd, seconded by Councilman Baker, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant third reading approval to this rezoning request as presented.  

OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS: None

NEW BUSINESS: 
(1) Recognition Of Brent Dillard for Receiving 5th Place Ranking -- The 2018 World Championship – Representing 

American Power Boat Association.  



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 3

Mr. Steve Dillard, father of Brent Dillard and owner of Dillard Financials, introduced his son.  He stated that 
Brent was 14 years old when Governor Beasley of the State of South Carolina presented Brent with a resolution 
for being the youngest Speed Board Racer from South Carolina.  Mr. Dillard said that Brent is now 32 and is 
making world-history for the United States by being the only American Racing in the American Power Boat 
Association races with the power boat.  Brent came in 5th place in the 2018 World Power Boat Racing.  

Then the Clerk played a video of one of the power boat races which show how Brent and other racers maneuvers 
the boat.  Chairman McCain read a proclamation proclaiming April 9, 2019, as Brent Dillard Day in Sumter 
County, South Carolina.  Council also presented Brent with several gifts.  Several Council members thanked 
Brent for representing Sumter County, the State of South Carolina, and the United States on the world scene.  

Brent thanked Council for the gifts and the Proclamation.  

ACTION:  Received as information.

(2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  

Council deferred consideration of this item until the end of the meeting after public comment.  

OLD BUSINESS: 

(1) 19-907 – Second Reading --  An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 6-19, 6-20 
And 6-23 Of Chapter 6, Article II, Relating To Dogs And Other Animals.  

Mr. Johnathan Bryan, the County Attorney, stated that this proposed ordinance would allow for changes to be 
made to Sumter County Code of Ordinances, Section 6-19, 6-20, and 6:23

Sec. 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.
(a) After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been impounded in the animal shelter 

for ten days and is unclaimed by its owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a 
humane form of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable that has been 
impounded for six days may be turned over to any organization established for the purpose of caring 
for animals such as the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or to any person who is 
approved to adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective adoption/rescue policies and procedures, 
provided the requirements of S. C. Code Ann. 47-3-60 (2017) or any other state statute, do not require 
impoundment for a longer period.   Complete records shall be kept by animal shelter officials as to 
the disposition of all animals impounded. (Code 1981, § 5.107; Code 1985, § 4-20)

(b) This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees or volunteers under the 
supervision of the County Administrator.

WHEREAS, Sumter County Council has previously enacted ordinances concerning dogs and other 
animals; and 

WHEREAS, those ordinances, as compiled, are promulgated, in pertinent part, in the Code of 
Ordinances for Sumter County, South Carolina in Chapter 6, Article II, Sections 6-19 through 6-27; and 



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 4

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF SUMTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED AND BY THE AUTHORITY 
THEREOF: 

That Sumter County hereby amends its Code of Ordinances Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23, of Chapter 6, Article 
II, so that those sections shall read as follows:

1.  The following definitions shall be added to Section 6-19. Definitions

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a chain, cable, rope, running line, 
harness or similar devise. It shall not include the use of an appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include 
appropriate leashes attached to trolley lines.
   Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley stop points suspended at least three 
feet above the dog’s head which allows five feet lateral movement for the dog on each side of the primary trolley 
line as measured on the ground.  The secondary line attached to the dog shall have a rolling trolley freely 
moveable a distance of at least ten feet along the primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and 
swivels at both ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter and may restrain 
only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic 
material and must be fitted so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.

2.  New subsection (f) shall be added to Section 6-20. Certain actions unlawful, which new subsection (f) 
provides:

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, restrain or otherwise cause an unattended dog 
to be fastened, chained, tied or restrained without limitation to houses, trees, garages or other stationary or 
immobile objects by means of a chain, cable rope, running line, harness or other physical restraint for the purpose 
of confinement except in circumstance in which all of the following requirements are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and not directly to the dog’s neck.  
All collars used must be made of nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so 
as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck. The tether must be at least 15 feet in length 
and positioned so that, at its greatest length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a swivel on at least one end of the tether 
to minimize tangling.

(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather conditions including, but not 

limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing temperatures, hurricanes, thunderstorms or floods.
(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road or sidewalk and not in an 

area open to teasing or attacks, or where the ground is continuously wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be 
tethered in a manner that will prevent the dog from leaving the owner’s property.

(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must be tethered separately with 

sufficient space placed between the dogs to ensure that there is no contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working to be tethered when supervised by 
the owner or a person with custody and control of the dog.

3.  Section 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs, shall be revised to read as follows.



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 5

(a)  After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been impounded in the animal shelter for 
ten days and is unclaimed by its owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a humane 
form of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable that has been impounded 
for six days may be turned over to any organization established for the purpose of caring for animals 
such as the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or  to any person who is approved to 
adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective adoption/rescue policies and procedures, provided 
the requirements of S. C. Code Ann. 47-3-60 (2017) or any other state statute, do not require 
impoundment for a longer period.   Complete records shall be kept by animal shelter officials as to 
the disposition of all animals impounded. 

(b)This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees or volunteers under the 
supervision of the County Administrator.

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baten, seconded by Vice Chairman Byrd, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant second reading approval to this proposed ordinance amendment 
as presented.  

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

(1) Public Works And Solid Waste Committee Meeting To Be Held At 5:30 p.m. On Tuesday, April 9, 2019, In 
County Council’s Conference Room And/Or Chambers.  (Baker, Baten, and Sumpter)

Councilman Artie Baker, Chairman of the Public Works And Solid Waste Committee, received a report from 
the Public Works Department asking that the Committee recommend approval to Council for Lewis Brothers 
Construction Company of Currie, Inc., Currie, NC, be allowed to repair work on the CSX rails in Sumter County 
and to secure the funds for the repairs from Sumter County’s Infrastructure Account.

It was noted that the following would need to be completed:

1. International Paper:  Replace fifteen (15) switch ties in STC Switch at a cost of $4,900
2. Interlake/Jemison/Demsey:  Replace eighteen (18) crossties and six (6) switch ties at a cost of $5,060.  The 

total cost of the repairs is $9,960.  
After the report on this matter, the Chairman asked for action on approving the report and action as outlined 
above.  

ACTION:  MOTION and second were received from the Committee, and unanimously carried by Council 
to approve the request to use $9,960 from the County’s Infrastructure Account to do repair work per CSX 
Inspection report as outlined in this Committee report.  

(2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences; And Any Other Council 
Comments.   

Councilman Baker thanked the Chairman, County Administrator, and the Clerk to Council for working together 
in sponsoring the “Ja Morant” Celebration on Monday, April 8, 2019.  He stated that the event really turned out 
nice and he believes that “Ja” and his parent were proud that the City and County worked together to have this 
event for him.  



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 6

MONTHLY REPORTS
1) Board Of Adjustment And Appeals – April 10, 2019
2) 2019 Mayor's Prayer Breakfast – May 2, 2019
3) 2019 National Police Week Prayer Breakfast – May 14, 2019
4) 2019 Festival On The Avenue – April 11-13, 2019
5) 2019 Mary McLeod Bethune Festival -- 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
Mr. Mixon reminded Council members that the budget process is underway and he and Mr. James Michaelson, the 
Finance Director along with other staff members have been meeting with different departments.  Council will be 
updated periodically on the progress of the budget.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Chairman McCain asked if anyone from the public would like to speak during public 
comment; no one spoke, therefore, the closed the public comment section of the meeting.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take Appropriate 
Actions Thereafter If Required.  

Chairman McCain called for a motion to enter executive session concerning a contractual matter.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Vice Chairman Byrd, and unanimously 
carried by Council to enter executive session to discuss a contractual matter.  Upon conclusion of executive 
session, Council voted through a MOTION by Vice Chairman Byrd, seconded by Councilman Sumpter, and 
unanimously carried by Council to re-enter open session.  

Report From Executive Session: Chairman McCain said that Council received information in the executive session; 
however, no action needed to be taken at this time.  

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business for Sumter County Council, and no additional comments from the public, the meeting 
was adjourned at 6:27 p.m. after a motion by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Baten, and unanimously 
carried by Council.  

Respectfully submitted,

______________________________________ __________________________
Chairman or Vice Chairman                                                Clerk to County Council 
Sumter County Council                                                        Sumter County Council

Approved: ___________________________

********************************************************************************************
***

James T. McCain, Jr. Mary W. Blanding



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Page 7

I certify that public and media notification of the above-mentioned meeting was given prior thereto as follows 
required by Freedom of Information:

Public Notified: Yes

Manner Notified: Agendas posted on bulletin board on third floor of the Administration Building.

Date Posted: April 8, 2019

Media Notified: Yes  

Manner Notified: Agenda Information is listed on Sumter County’s Home Page, and E-mailed to The Item, 
The Chamber, WIS-TV, WBTW, and Time Warner Cable.  

Date Notified: April 5, 2019

Respectfully submitted,

Clerk to County Council

Mary W. Blanding



Sumter City-County
Planning Department

DERON L. MCCORMICK                                                               GEORGE K. MCGREGOR                                                                          
GARY M. MIXON
CITY MANAGER                                                                                PLANNING DIRECTOR                                                       COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR

12 WEST LIBERTY STREET   •   PO BOX 1449   •   SUMTER, SC 29151
OFFICE: (803) 774-1660   •   FAX (803) 774-1687

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mary Blanding, Clerk to County Council

FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP, Planning Director

DATE: April 16, 2019

SUBJECT: COUNTY COUNCIL AGENDA – APRIL 23, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission will have the following land use item(s) for 
review at County Council on Tuesday, April 23, 2019:

SECOND READING / PUBLIC HEARING

RZ-19-04, Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County)
Request to rezone a +/-74.69 acre parcel located on Beulah Cuttino Rd. 
from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC). The property is 
represented by Tax Map # 222-00-01-013.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (803) 774-1660.



Sumter County Council
April 23, 2019

Second Reading / Public Hearing

Planning Commission Staff Report

RZ 19-04, 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County)

THE REQUEST

Applicant: Donnie Ryan Beard & Robin Beard

Status of the Applicant: Property Owner

Request: A request to rezone a +/- 74.69 acre parcel from Residential-15 (R-
15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC)

Location: 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd.

Size of Property: +/- 74.69 acres

Present Use/Zoning: Undeveloped / R-15

Proposed Use of Property: Residential 

Tax Map Reference: 222-00-01-013

Adjacent Property Land 
Use and Zoning:

North – Undeveloped / Residential-15 (R-15)
South – Undeveloped / Agricultural Conservation (AC)
East –  Residential-15 (R-15)
West – Residential-15 (R-15)

II.  BACKGROUND

This request is to rezone a +/- 74.69 acre parcel 
from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural 
Conservation (AC).

The applicant is requesting this rezoning in order 
to create a new 2.95 acre lot for the purposes of 
building a house.  The proposed dimensions of 
this new lot are not in conformance with R-15 
development standards. However, the 
dimensions are in conformance with Agricultural 
Conservation (AC) development standards. Also, 
the applicant has tentative future plans to 
construct an accessory structure (a personal work 



shop) towards the western side of the future 74.63 acre parcel.  Per the applicant, there are no 
further plans to develop the property other than to build a house and accessory structure on the 
proposed new lots. 

The above graphic shows the proposed subdivision of the larger property. The proposed 
subdivision does not meet required R-15 lot width to depth ratio requirements that are applicable 
to residential lots. Residential lots in the AC district are exempt from this standard, per Article 
8.e.13.f – Lots of the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance.  Furthermore, 
the proposed subdivision does not meet the R-15 lot minimum width requirement.  R-15 lots are 
required to have a minimum lot width of 100ft., per Article 3.b.5.a.  – Lot Requirements (Minimum) 
of the Sumter County Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance.

View of the property from Beulah Cuttino Rd. 
View of the Property from Beulah Cuttino Rd.  

The purpose of the R-15 zoning district is to recognize the essential suburban living character of 
significant portions of Sumter County where low and medium density single-family residential 
development is the predominant living environment of the existing and future population. 



The purpose of the AC zoning designation is to protect and preserve areas of the county which are 
presently rural or agricultural in character and use, and are uniquely suited to agricultural uses.  A 
few of the permitted uses in AC zoning allow for Single-Family dwellings, Agricultural Uses and 
Manufactured Housing/Mobile Homes.

The subject property is adjacent to R-15 zoning to the north, east, and west. The property is 
immediately adjacent to AC zoning to the south. 

Based on available water and sewer infrastructure location data, the property is over 9,000 ft. away 
from the closest sewer main and approximately 400 ft. away from water mains along US Hwy 15 
South. Without utility expansions, the property would require private septic tanks and private wells 
for development. In areas without sewer infrastructure, septic tank drain field areas that are 
established based on site specific soil conditions ultimately determine development density. 
Typically, this means development densities significantly less than 15,000 sf per lot as permitted 
under R-15 district standards.  

III. COMPATIBILITY WITH THE 
2030 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

As shown in the 2030 Land Use Map, the 
property is located within the Suburban 
Development planning area. However, the 
property is at the extreme edge of this planning 
area and is considered to be influenced by the 
Rural Development planning area located 
immediately to the south. 

The goal of the Suburban Development 
planning area is to scrutinize and manage 
existing development patterns. The goal of the 
Rural Development planning area is to support 



low-density residential development at no greater than one unit per acre and to support selected 
non-residential and agricultural uses in a relaxed regulatory climate. 

Specifically, this request is supported by the following Suburban Development policy:
 Low density development on private well and septic (one unit per acre or more) is 

appropriate adjacent to the rural planning area and military protection area, or in cases 
where environmental constraints dictate that low density residential is more appropriate. 

Additionally, since the site is considered to be influenced by Rural Development planning area, 
staff finds that the request is compatible with the following specific Rural Development policies:

 Residential densities shall be supported at no greater than one unit per acre. 
 Public sewer shall not be extended into the Rural Development planning area. (If public 

sewer was extended to this site it would put development pressure onto the immediately 
adjacent areas in the Rural Development area).  

Staff finds that the request is compatible with the 2030 Plan. 

IV. TRAFFIC REVIEW

Beulah Cuttino Rd. is an SCDOT owned two lane road which is functionally classified as a Minor 
Collector Road. In 2017, Beulah Cuttino Rd. had an annual daily trip count (AADT) of 750 
vehicles.

Where applicable, any proposed future development at the subject property will have its 
transportation impacts evaluated at time of site plan approval with appropriate mitigation measures 
required.

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The request to rezone +/- 74.69 acres from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation 
(AC) is generally supported by the 2030 Future Land Use policies.  Additionally, there is a lack of 
adequate utility infrastructure for the site to develop at R-15 densities.

VI. PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 27, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission at its meeting on Wednesday, March 27, 2019, 
recommended approval of this request.

VII. COUNTY COUNCIL – APRIL 9, 2019 – FIRST READING

The Sumter County Council at its meeting on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, gave First Reading 
approval for this request. 

VIII. COUNTY COUNCIL – APRIL 23, 2019 – SECOND READING/PUBLIC 
HEARING











ORDINANCE NO. 19-907                         

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SUMTER COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
SECTIONS 6-19, 6-20 AND 6-23 of CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE II, RELATING TO DOGS 

AND OTHER ANIMALS 

WHEREAS, Sumter County Council has previously enacted ordinances concerning 
dogs and other animals; and 

WHEREAS, those ordinances, as compiled, are promulgated, in pertinent part, in 
the Code of Ordinances for Sumter County, South Carolina in Chapter 6, Article II, 
Sections 6-19 through 6-27; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY 
ASSEMBLED AND BY THE AUTHORITY THEREOF: 

That Sumter County hereby amends its Code of Ordinances Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23, 
of Chapter 6, Article II, so that those sections shall read as follows:

This Ordinance is done, ratified and adopted            , 2019.



THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR SUMTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (SEAL)

BY:                                      
James T. McCain, Jr. 

ITS: Chairman

ATTEST:

                                         
Mary W. Blanding

Its: Clerk of County Council

First Reading:                                    , 2019.

Second Reading:                                    , 2019.

Third Reading and Adoption:                          , 2019.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:3

6-19

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL

Secs. 6-1—6-18. Reserved.

ARTICLE 11. DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS

Sec. 6-19. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal shall exclude any cow, ox, horse, donkey, mule, sheep, goat, 
chicken, turkey, quail, or similar farm animal which is raised or used for 
agricultural purposes where such animal is kept and maintained within an 
enclosed area and located in compliance with all applicable provisions of the 
zoning ordinance of the county set out in appendix A to this Code.

Animal Control Officer means the County Sheriff, any lawful deputy of the 
said Sheriff, any county constable, and any other person designated by the 
County Sheriff or the County Administrator to carry out and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter.

Animal shelter means any premises designated by the county governing 
body for the purpose of impounding, caring for or destroying dogs held under 
authority of this article.

Dogs means any member of the canine family four months or more of age.
Known and knowingly shall include information from previous occurrences 

or complaints which are known or should have been known and information 
generally known or readily available about and characteristic of the particular 
breed of animal in question.

Running at-large. A dog shall be deemed to be "running at-large" unless it 
is under restraint.

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a 
chain, cable, rope, running line, harness or similar devise. It shall not include 
the use of an appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include appropriate 
leashes attached to trolley lines.

Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley 
stop points suspended at least three feet above the dog’s head which allows 
five feet lateral movement for the dog on each side of the primary trolley line 
as measured on the ground.  The secondary line attached to the dog shall have 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
a rolling trolley freely moveable a distance of at least ten feet along the 
primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and swivels at both 
ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter 
and may restrain only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of 
nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted 
so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.    

Under restraint. A dog shall be deemed to be "under restraint" if on the 
premises of the owner or keeper or if accompanied by its owner or keeper and 
under the physical control of the owner or keeper by means of a leash or other 
similar restraining device, or under the active control of the owner or trainer 
while hunting or being trained and while on property of the owner or with the 
property owner's permission.

Vicious dog means any dog evidencing an abnormal inclination to attack 
persons or animals without provocation.
(Code 1981, § 5.101; Code 1985, § 4-16; Ord. No. 94-261, § 1, 8-23-1994)

6-20

Sec. 6-20. Certain actions unlawful.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any dog owner or other person with custody 

and control of a dog to allow his dog or a dog under his custody and control 
to run at-large off property owned, rented or controlled by such person within 
the unincorporated areas of the county.

(b) It shall be unlawful in the county for any dog owner or person with 
custody and control of such dog to allow a female dog to run at-large during 
estrus or the heat period.

(c) It shall be unlawful to own or keep a vicious dog within the confines 
of the county unless such vicious dog is securely muzzled or unless under 
restraint by a fence, chain, leash, or other means, so that such dog cannot 
reach persons not on land owned, leased or controlled by him.

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon any dog in the county.
(e) It shall be unlawful for any person to take or remove or attempt to 

rescue, seize, or deliver a dog from the custody and control of an animal 
control officer when any such dog shall have been seized under the provisions 
of this article; such conduct shall be deemed to be interfering with an animal 
control officer in the performance of his duty and shall be punishable as 
provided by law for such offense.

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, 
restrain or otherwise cause an unattended dog to be fastened, chained, tied or 
restrained without limitation to houses, trees, garages or other stationary or 



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:5

immobile objects by means of a chain, cable rope, running line, harness or 
other physical restraint for the purpose of confinement except in circumstance 
in which all of the following requirement are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and 
not directly to the dog’s neck.  All collars used must be made of nylon, 
leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as 
not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck. The tether 
must be at least 15 feet in length and positioned so that, at its greatest 
length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a 
swivel on at least one end of the tether to minimize tangling.
(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and 
water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather 
conditions including, but not limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing 
temperatures, hurricanes, thunderstorms or floods.
(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road 
or sidewalk and not in an area open to teasing or attacks, or where the 
ground is continuously wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be tethered in 
a manner that will prevent the dog from leaving the owner’s property.
(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must 
be tethered separately with sufficient space placed between the dogs to 
ensure that there is no contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working 
to be tethered when supervised by the owner or a person with custody and 
control of the dog.      

(Code 1981, 5.102(b), 5.014; Code 1985, § 4-17; Ord. No. 85-138, § 1,
6-11-1985; Ord. No. 88-175, § 1, 6-14-1988; Ord. No. 94-261, § 3, 8-23-1994; Ord. 
No. 04-537, 7-27-2004)

Sec. 6-21. Enforcement of article.
The County Administrator is authorized and directed to employ such 

personnel and provide such equipment as are, in his opinion, necessary to 
properly enforce the provisions of this article. Before any funds are expended 
or personnel employed, approval by the County Council must first be 
obtained. In addition, the County Sheriff, and lawful deputy of the Sheriff, 
and any county constable (unless contrary to the terms of the commission of 
said county constable) shall each be authorized to enforce the provisions of 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
this article along with such other persons as directed to do so by the County 
Administrator.
(Code 1981, § 5.103; Code 1985, § 4-18; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-22. Responsibility for damage and injury.
Whenever any dog shall go upon lands other than those leased, occupied, 

or controlled by his owner or keeper and cause property damage or personal 
injury thereon, such dog may be seized by the animal control officer at the 
request or complaint of the freeholder, his tenant, agent, or representative, of

CD6:4

6-24

the land upon which the personal injury or damage was caused, and the owner 
of such trespassing dog shall be liable for all damages sustained and for the 
expenses of seizure and maintenance as herein provided. Such damages and 
expenses shall be recoverable by appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, and a lien shall exist upon any such trespassing dog in favor of 
any injured person for such damages to person or property and for all expenses 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, which lien shall have 
preference over all other liens, claims or encumbrances upon such dog.
(Code 1981, § 5.106; Code 1985, § 4-19; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.

(a) After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been 
impounded in the animal shelter for ten days and is unclaimed by its 
owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a humane form 
of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable , or 
such dog that has been impounded for six days may be turned over to any 
organization established for the purpose of caring for animals such as the 
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or .   to any person who 
is approved to adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective 
adoption/rescue policies and procedures, provided the requirements of 
S.C.Code Ann. 47-3-60 (2017) or any other state statute, do not require 
impoundment for a longer period.   Complete records shall be kept by 
animal shelter officials as to the disposition of all animals impounded. 
(Code 1981, § 5.107; Code 1985, § 4-20)

(b) This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees 
or volunteers under the supervision of the County Administrator.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:7

Sec. 6-24. Nuisance animals.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, partnership, or other 

entity within the unincorporated limits of the county to own, keep, possess or 
maintain an animal in such a manner so as to constitute a public nuisance. 
The following acts or actions, whether of omission or commission, by an 
owner or possessor of any animal are hereby declared to be a public nuisance 
(a "nuisance") and to be unlawful:

(1) Failure to exercise sufficient restraint necessary to control an animal as 
required by any provision of section 6-20.

(2) Allowing or permitting an animal to repeatedly damage the property of 
anyone other than its owner, including, but not limited to, turning over 
garbage containers or damaging gardens, flowers, or vegetables.

(3) Failure to maintain an animal which is known or should be known to 
the owner or person in control thereof to be dangerous in a manner other 
than that which is described in section 6-20(c).

(4) Maintaining an animal in an environment of unsanitary conditions 
which results in odors that are offensive or dangerous to such animal, 
adjacent landowners or occupants, or to the general public health, 
welfare, or safety.

6-24

(5) Maintaining property in a manner that is offensive, annoying or 
dangerous to the public health, safety or welfare of the community 
because of the number, type, variety, density or location of the animals 
on the property.

(6) Allowing or permitting an animal to bark, whine, or howl in an 
excessive, unwarranted and continuous fashion, or make other noise in 
such manner so as to result in repeated serious annoyance or 
interference with the reasonable use and enjoyment of any neighboring 
property.

(7) Knowingly or carelessly maintaining an animal that is diseased and 
dangerous to the public health.

(8) Maintaining an animal that habitually or repeatedly chases, snaps at, 
bites, attempts to bite, attacks, or barks at pedestrians, persons on 
bicycles or vehicles in a street, road, or highway used by the public or 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
on property not owned or under the control of the owner or person in 
control of such animal.

(9) Maintaining an animal that injures persons or property of the general 
public except on property owned or under control of the owner of said 
animal.

(10) Maintaining an animal which threatens the safety of the general public 
where such animal has demonstrated activities or health problems in 
the past where the owner or person in control of such animal was aware 
or should have been aware of such threat.

(11) Knowingly maintaining an animal that unreasonably and repeatedly 
interferes with a person's enjoyment of that person's property without 
the consent or acquiescence of such person.

(12) Maintaining an animal which poses a known and unreasonable danger 
to other animals which are maintained as required by law.

(b) An animal which has been determined to be a habitual nuisance by 
an animal control officer may be impounded and may not be returned to the 
owner thereof until the owner can produce evidence to demonstrate that the 
situation creating the nuisance has been abated and the owner pays to the 
county reasonable costs and expenses related to the impoundment of such an 
animal.

(c) Every female canine animal in estrus (commonly referred to as 
being "in heat") shall be kept confined in a building or in a secure enclosure 
and will not be kept in a manner as will create a nuisance by attracting and 
being available for contact with other canine animals. An intentional or 
repeated failure to comply with this subsection shall be unlawful.
(Code 1985, § 4-21; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

CD6:6

6-85

Sec. 6-25. Abandonment.
It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon or otherwise fail to provide 

for the reasonable care or humane disposal of an animal in any of the 
unincorporated areas of the county.
(Code 1985, § 4-22; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-26. Interference with animal control officers.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:9

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with, hinder, or molest any 
animal control officer in the performance of the duty of such officer or to 
cause or attempt to cause the release of any animal in the custody of such 
officer without the consent of such officer.
(Code 1985, § 4-23; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-27. Penalties for violation.
The violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. Each day 
of violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a separate offense. 
Each animal kept, owned, controlled or otherwise caused or permitted to be 
involved in a violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 
separate offense. (Code 1985, § 4-24; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Secs. 6-28—6-84. Reserved.

ARTICLE 111. RABIES CONTROL*

Sec. 6-85. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal control officer means the person designated by the county to enforce 
this article.

Pet means only domesticated species of carnivores.
(Code 1985, § 4-36)

*State law references—Notice to health department of animal possibly affected 
by rabies, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-80; reporting animal bite, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-90; confinement, exam, or destruction of biting animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-100; confinement of bitten animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-110.



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:10

6-86

Sec. 6-86. Inoculation; certificate; tags.
(a) No person shall own, keep, or harbor any pet within the county for 

longer than 60 days unless such pet has been inoculated against rabies as 
provided in this section.

(b) Every owner of a pet will have his pet inoculated against rabies 
each year.

(c) A state board of health certificate of pet rabies vaccination will be 
issued by a licensed graduate veterinarian for each pet stating the name and 
address of the owner, the name, breed, color and markings, age, sex of the 
animal, and the veterinary or pharmaceutical control number of the 
vaccination.

(d) Coincident with the issuance of the certificate, the licensed 
graduate veterinarian shall also furnish a serially numbered metal license tag 
bearing the same number and year as the certificate. The metal license tag 
shall bear the name of the veterinarian who administered the vaccination and 
shall at all times be attached to a collar or harness worn by the pet for which 
the certificate and tag has been issued.

(e) The owner shall have a valid certificate of rabies immunization 
readily available for inspection by competent authority at all times.

(f) In the event that a rabies tag is lost, the owner will obtain a 
duplicate tag without delay.

(g) If there is a change in ownership of a pet during the valid period of 
immunization, the new owner may have the current certificate of 
immunization transferred to his name.

(h) A certificate or rabies immunization issued by a licensed 
veterinarian from another state will be accepted as valid evidence provided it 
is less than a year old.

(i) It shall be unlawful for any owner of any pet which has not been 
inoculated as required by this division to allow it to run at-large. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-37)

Sec. 6-87. Owners, etc., required to notify authorities of suspected 
rabid animals.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:11

Whenever a pet or other animal is affected by rabies or suspected of being 
affected by rabies or has been bitten by an animal known or suspected to be 
affected by rabies, the owner of the animal or any person having knowledge 
thereof shall forthwith notify the animal control officer and the county health 
department stating precisely where the animal may be found. (Code 1985, § 
4-38)

6-91

Sec. 6-88. Animal control officer to arrange for confinement of 
animal which has bitten a person.

The animal control officer, in conjunction with the county health 
department, shall arrange for the supervised confinement of any pet or other 
animal which has bitten a person. Such confinement may be on the premises 
of the owner if the owner will sign an agreement assuming total 
responsibility for the safe confinement of the pet or other animal. 
Confinement may be at the county animal shelter, a private animal shelter, 
veterinary hospital, or humane society shelter at the owner's option and 
expense. (Code 1985, § 4-39)

Sec. 6-89. Required period of confinement of animal which has 
bitten a person; examination during confinement.

Any pet or other animal which has bitten a person must be confined for a 
period of at least ten days. The county health department or the animal 
control officer will be permitted by the owner of such pet or animal to 
examine the animal at any time and daily if desired within the ten-day period 
of confinement to determine whether such animal shows symptoms of 
rabies. No person shall obstruct or interfere with the animal control officer 
or the county health department in making such examination. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-40)

Sec. 6-90. Notice of owner of animal, other than a dog or cat, which 
has attacked or bitten a person.

In case of a pet other than a dog or cat, which has attacked or bitten a 
person, the county health department shall serve notice upon the owner of 
such pet that the owner shall have the animal euthanized immediately and 
have the brain submitted for rabies examination. (Code 1985, § 4-41)



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:12

Sec. 6-91. Confinement of animals bitten by known or suspected 
rabid animals.

The county health department shall serve notice in writing upon the owner 
of a pet or other animal known to have been bitten by an animal known or 
suspected of being affected by rabies requiring the owner to confine such 
animal for a period of not less than six months; except that, animals properly 
treated with anti-rabic vaccine shall be confined for a period of not less than 
three months. (Code 1985, § 4-42)

6-92

Sec. 6-92. Killing or removing from jurisdiction suspected rabid 
animals prohibited; exception.

No person shall kill, or cause to be killed, any rabid pet or other animal, or 
one suspected of having been exposed to rabies or which has bitten a person, 
nor remove such pet or animal from the jurisdiction of the county without 
written permission of the county health department. An exception to the 
preceding requirement is in the event of the possibility of the animal's escape 
or additional biting in which case the animal is to be killed and the county 
health department notified immediately.
(Code 1985, § 4-43)

Sec. 6-93. Penalty.
The violation of any section of this article shall constitute a misdemeanor 

and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. (Code 1985, § 4-44)



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:3

6-19

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL

Secs. 6-1—6-18. Reserved.

ARTICLE 11. DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS

Sec. 6-19. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal shall exclude any cow, ox, horse, donkey, mule, sheep, goat, 
chicken, turkey, quail, or similar farm animal which is raised or used for 
agricultural purposes where such animal is kept and maintained within an 
enclosed area and located in compliance with all applicable provisions of the 
zoning ordinance of the county set out in appendix A to this Code.

Animal Control Officer means the County Sheriff, any lawful deputy of the 
said Sheriff, any county constable, and any other person designated by the 
County Sheriff or the County Administrator to carry out and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter.

Animal shelter means any premises designated by the county governing 
body for the purpose of impounding, caring for or destroying dogs held under 
authority of this article.

Dogs means any member of the canine family four months or more of age.
Known and knowingly shall include information from previous occurrences 

or complaints which are known or should have been known and information 
generally known or readily available about and characteristic of the particular 
breed of animal in question.

Running at-large. A dog shall be deemed to be "running at-large" unless it 
is under restraint.

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a 
chain, cable, rope, running line, harness or similar devise. It shall not include 
the use of an appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include appropriate 
leashes attached to trolley lines.

Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley 
stop points suspended at least three feet above the dog’s head which allows 
five feet lateral movement for the dog on each side of the primary trolley line 
as measured on the ground.  The secondary line attached to the dog shall have 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
a rolling trolley freely moveable a distance of at least ten feet along the 
primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and swivels at both 
ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter 
and may restrain only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of 
nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted 
so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.    

Under restraint. A dog shall be deemed to be "under restraint" if on the 
premises of the owner or keeper or if accompanied by its owner or keeper and 
under the physical control of the owner or keeper by means of a leash or other 
similar restraining device, or under the active control of the owner or trainer 
while hunting or being trained and while on property of the owner or with the 
property owner's permission.

Vicious dog means any dog evidencing an abnormal inclination to attack 
persons or animals without provocation.
(Code 1981, § 5.101; Code 1985, § 4-16; Ord. No. 94-261, § 1, 8-23-1994)

6-20

Sec. 6-20. Certain actions unlawful.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any dog owner or other person with custody 

and control of a dog to allow his dog or a dog under his custody and control 
to run at-large off property owned, rented or controlled by such person within 
the unincorporated areas of the county.

(b) It shall be unlawful in the county for any dog owner or person with 
custody and control of such dog to allow a female dog to run at-large during 
estrus or the heat period.

(c) It shall be unlawful to own or keep a vicious dog within the confines 
of the county unless such vicious dog is securely muzzled or unless under 
restraint by a fence, chain, leash, or other means, so that such dog cannot 
reach persons not on land owned, leased or controlled by him.

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon any dog in the county.
(e) It shall be unlawful for any person to take or remove or attempt to 

rescue, seize, or deliver a dog from the custody and control of an animal 
control officer when any such dog shall have been seized under the provisions 
of this article; such conduct shall be deemed to be interfering with an animal 
control officer in the performance of his duty and shall be punishable as 
provided by law for such offense.

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, 
restrain or otherwise cause an unattended dog to be fastened, chained, tied or 
restrained without limitation to houses, trees, garages or other stationary or 



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:5

immobile objects by means of a chain, cable rope, running line, harness or 
other physical restraint for the purpose of confinement except in circumstance 
in which all of the following requirement are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and 
not directly to the dog’s neck.  All collars used must be made of nylon, 
leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as 
not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck. The tether 
must be at least 15 feet in length and positioned so that, at its greatest 
length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a 
swivel on at least one end of the tether to minimize tangling.
(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and 
water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather 
conditions including, but not limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing 
temperatures, hurricanes, thunderstorms or floods.
(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road 
or sidewalk and not in an area open to teasing or attacks, or where the 
ground is continuously wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be tethered in 
a manner that will prevent the dog from leaving the owner’s property.
(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must 
be tethered separately with sufficient space placed between the dogs to 
ensure that there is no contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working 
to be tethered when supervised by the owner or a person with custody and 
control of the dog.      

(Code 1981, 5.102(b), 5.014; Code 1985, § 4-17; Ord. No. 85-138, § 1,
6-11-1985; Ord. No. 88-175, § 1, 6-14-1988; Ord. No. 94-261, § 3, 8-23-1994; Ord. 
No. 04-537, 7-27-2004)

Sec. 6-21. Enforcement of article.
The County Administrator is authorized and directed to employ such 

personnel and provide such equipment as are, in his opinion, necessary to 
properly enforce the provisions of this article. Before any funds are expended 
or personnel employed, approval by the County Council must first be 
obtained. In addition, the County Sheriff, and lawful deputy of the Sheriff, 
and any county constable (unless contrary to the terms of the commission of 
said county constable) shall each be authorized to enforce the provisions of 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
this article along with such other persons as directed to do so by the County 
Administrator.
(Code 1981, § 5.103; Code 1985, § 4-18; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-22. Responsibility for damage and injury.
Whenever any dog shall go upon lands other than those leased, occupied, 

or controlled by his owner or keeper and cause property damage or personal 
injury thereon, such dog may be seized by the animal control officer at the 
request or complaint of the freeholder, his tenant, agent, or representative, of

CD6:4

6-24

the land upon which the personal injury or damage was caused, and the owner 
of such trespassing dog shall be liable for all damages sustained and for the 
expenses of seizure and maintenance as herein provided. Such damages and 
expenses shall be recoverable by appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, and a lien shall exist upon any such trespassing dog in favor of 
any injured person for such damages to person or property and for all expenses 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, which lien shall have 
preference over all other liens, claims or encumbrances upon such dog.
(Code 1981, § 5.106; Code 1985, § 4-19; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.

(a) After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been 
impounded in the animal shelter for ten days and is unclaimed by its 
owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a humane form 
of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable that 
has been impounded for six days may be turned over to any organization 
established for the purpose of caring for animals such as the Society for 
the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or   to any person who is approved 
to adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective adoption/rescue policies 
and procedures, provided the requirements of S.C.Code Ann. 47-3-60 
(2017) or any other state statute, do not require impoundment for a longer 
period.   Complete records shall be kept by animal shelter officials as to 
the disposition of all animals impounded. (Code 1981, § 5.107; Code 1985, 
§ 4-20)

(b) This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees 
or volunteers under the supervision of the County Administrator.



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:7

Sec. 6-24. Nuisance animals.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, partnership, or other 

entity within the unincorporated limits of the county to own, keep, possess or 
maintain an animal in such a manner so as to constitute a public nuisance. 
The following acts or actions, whether of omission or commission, by an 
owner or possessor of any animal are hereby declared to be a public nuisance 
(a "nuisance") and to be unlawful:

(1) Failure to exercise sufficient restraint necessary to control an animal as 
required by any provision of section 6-20.

(2) Allowing or permitting an animal to repeatedly damage the property of 
anyone other than its owner, including, but not limited to, turning over 
garbage containers or damaging gardens, flowers, or vegetables.

(3) Failure to maintain an animal which is known or should be known to 
the owner or person in control thereof to be dangerous in a manner other 
than that which is described in section 6-20(c).

(4) Maintaining an animal in an environment of unsanitary conditions 
which results in odors that are offensive or dangerous to such animal, 
adjacent landowners or occupants, or to the general public health, 
welfare, or safety.

6-24

(5) Maintaining property in a manner that is offensive, annoying or 
dangerous to the public health, safety or welfare of the community 
because of the number, type, variety, density or location of the animals 
on the property.

(6) Allowing or permitting an animal to bark, whine, or howl in an 
excessive, unwarranted and continuous fashion, or make other noise in 
such manner so as to result in repeated serious annoyance or 
interference with the reasonable use and enjoyment of any neighboring 
property.

(7) Knowingly or carelessly maintaining an animal that is diseased and 
dangerous to the public health.

(8) Maintaining an animal that habitually or repeatedly chases, snaps at, 
bites, attempts to bite, attacks, or barks at pedestrians, persons on 
bicycles or vehicles in a street, road, or highway used by the public or 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
on property not owned or under the control of the owner or person in 
control of such animal.

(9) Maintaining an animal that injures persons or property of the general 
public except on property owned or under control of the owner of said 
animal.

(10) Maintaining an animal which threatens the safety of the general public 
where such animal has demonstrated activities or health problems in 
the past where the owner or person in control of such animal was aware 
or should have been aware of such threat.

(11) Knowingly maintaining an animal that unreasonably and repeatedly 
interferes with a person's enjoyment of that person's property without 
the consent or acquiescence of such person.

(12) Maintaining an animal which poses a known and unreasonable danger 
to other animals which are maintained as required by law.

(b) An animal which has been determined to be a habitual nuisance by 
an animal control officer may be impounded and may not be returned to the 
owner thereof until the owner can produce evidence to demonstrate that the 
situation creating the nuisance has been abated and the owner pays to the 
county reasonable costs and expenses related to the impoundment of such an 
animal.

(c) Every female canine animal in estrus (commonly referred to as 
being "in heat") shall be kept confined in a building or in a secure enclosure 
and will not be kept in a manner as will create a nuisance by attracting and 
being available for contact with other canine animals. An intentional or 
repeated failure to comply with this subsection shall be unlawful.
(Code 1985, § 4-21; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

CD6:6

6-85

Sec. 6-25. Abandonment.
It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon or otherwise fail to provide 

for the reasonable care or humane disposal of an animal in any of the 
unincorporated areas of the county.
(Code 1985, § 4-22; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-26. Interference with animal control officers.



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:9

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with, hinder, or molest any 
animal control officer in the performance of the duty of such officer or to 
cause or attempt to cause the release of any animal in the custody of such 
officer without the consent of such officer.
(Code 1985, § 4-23; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-27. Penalties for violation.
The violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. Each day 
of violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a separate offense. 
Each animal kept, owned, controlled or otherwise caused or permitted to be 
involved in a violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 
separate offense. (Code 1985, § 4-24; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Secs. 6-28—6-84. Reserved.

ARTICLE 111. RABIES CONTROL*

Sec. 6-85. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal control officer means the person designated by the county to enforce 
this article.

Pet means only domesticated species of carnivores.
(Code 1985, § 4-36)

*State law references—Notice to health department of animal possibly affected 
by rabies, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-80; reporting animal bite, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-90; confinement, exam, or destruction of biting animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-100; confinement of bitten animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-110.



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:10

6-86

Sec. 6-86. Inoculation; certificate; tags.
(a) No person shall own, keep, or harbor any pet within the county for 

longer than 60 days unless such pet has been inoculated against rabies as 
provided in this section.

(b) Every owner of a pet will have his pet inoculated against rabies 
each year.

(c) A state board of health certificate of pet rabies vaccination will be 
issued by a licensed graduate veterinarian for each pet stating the name and 
address of the owner, the name, breed, color and markings, age, sex of the 
animal, and the veterinary or pharmaceutical control number of the 
vaccination.

(d) Coincident with the issuance of the certificate, the licensed 
graduate veterinarian shall also furnish a serially numbered metal license tag 
bearing the same number and year as the certificate. The metal license tag 
shall bear the name of the veterinarian who administered the vaccination and 
shall at all times be attached to a collar or harness worn by the pet for which 
the certificate and tag has been issued.

(e) The owner shall have a valid certificate of rabies immunization 
readily available for inspection by competent authority at all times.

(f) In the event that a rabies tag is lost, the owner will obtain a 
duplicate tag without delay.

(g) If there is a change in ownership of a pet during the valid period of 
immunization, the new owner may have the current certificate of 
immunization transferred to his name.

(h) A certificate or rabies immunization issued by a licensed 
veterinarian from another state will be accepted as valid evidence provided it 
is less than a year old.

(i) It shall be unlawful for any owner of any pet which has not been 
inoculated as required by this division to allow it to run at-large. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-37)

Sec. 6-87. Owners, etc., required to notify authorities of suspected 
rabid animals.



ANIMALS AND FOWL  

CD6:11

Whenever a pet or other animal is affected by rabies or suspected of being 
affected by rabies or has been bitten by an animal known or suspected to be 
affected by rabies, the owner of the animal or any person having knowledge 
thereof shall forthwith notify the animal control officer and the county health 
department stating precisely where the animal may be found. (Code 1985, § 
4-38)

6-91

Sec. 6-88. Animal control officer to arrange for confinement of 
animal which has bitten a person.

The animal control officer, in conjunction with the county health 
department, shall arrange for the supervised confinement of any pet or other 
animal which has bitten a person. Such confinement may be on the premises 
of the owner if the owner will sign an agreement assuming total 
responsibility for the safe confinement of the pet or other animal. 
Confinement may be at the county animal shelter, a private animal shelter, 
veterinary hospital, or humane society shelter at the owner's option and 
expense. (Code 1985, § 4-39)

Sec. 6-89. Required period of confinement of animal which has 
bitten a person; examination during confinement.

Any pet or other animal which has bitten a person must be confined for a 
period of at least ten days. The county health department or the animal 
control officer will be permitted by the owner of such pet or animal to 
examine the animal at any time and daily if desired within the ten-day period 
of confinement to determine whether such animal shows symptoms of 
rabies. No person shall obstruct or interfere with the animal control officer 
or the county health department in making such examination. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-40)

Sec. 6-90. Notice of owner of animal, other than a dog or cat, which 
has attacked or bitten a person.

In case of a pet other than a dog or cat, which has attacked or bitten a 
person, the county health department shall serve notice upon the owner of 
such pet that the owner shall have the animal euthanized immediately and 
have the brain submitted for rabies examination. (Code 1985, § 4-41)



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:12

Sec. 6-91. Confinement of animals bitten by known or suspected 
rabid animals.

The county health department shall serve notice in writing upon the owner 
of a pet or other animal known to have been bitten by an animal known or 
suspected of being affected by rabies requiring the owner to confine such 
animal for a period of not less than six months; except that, animals properly 
treated with anti-rabic vaccine shall be confined for a period of not less than 
three months. (Code 1985, § 4-42)

6-92

Sec. 6-92. Killing or removing from jurisdiction suspected rabid 
animals prohibited; exception.

No person shall kill, or cause to be killed, any rabid pet or other animal, or 
one suspected of having been exposed to rabies or which has bitten a person, 
nor remove such pet or animal from the jurisdiction of the county without 
written permission of the county health department. An exception to the 
preceding requirement is in the event of the possibility of the animal's escape 
or additional biting in which case the animal is to be killed and the county 
health department notified immediately.
(Code 1985, § 4-43)

Sec. 6-93. Penalty.
The violation of any section of this article shall constitute a misdemeanor 

and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. (Code 1985, § 4-44)





ORDINANCE NO. 19-907                         

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SUMTER COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
SECTIONS 6-19, 6-20 AND 6-23 of CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE II, RELATING TO DOGS 

AND OTHER ANIMALS 

WHEREAS, Sumter County Council has previously enacted ordinances concerning 
dogs and other animals; and 

WHEREAS, those ordinances, as compiled, are promulgated, in pertinent part, in 
the Code of Ordinances for Sumter County, South Carolina in Chapter 6, Article II, 
Sections 6-19 through 6-27; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY 
ASSEMBLED AND BY THE AUTHORITY THEREOF: 

That Sumter County hereby amends its Code of Ordinances Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23, 
of Chapter 6, Article II, so that those sections shall read as follows:

This Ordinance is done, ratified and adopted            , 2019.



THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR SUMTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (SEAL)

BY:                                      
James T. McCain, Jr. 

ITS: Chairman

ATTEST:

                                         
Mary W. Blanding

Its: Clerk of County Council

First Reading:                                    , 2019.

Second Reading:                                    , 2019.

Third Reading and Adoption:                          , 2019.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:3

6-19

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL

Secs. 6-1—6-18. Reserved.

ARTICLE 11. DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS

Sec. 6-19. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal shall exclude any cow, ox, horse, donkey, mule, sheep, goat, 
chicken, turkey, quail, or similar farm animal which is raised or used for 
agricultural purposes where such animal is kept and maintained within an 
enclosed area and located in compliance with all applicable provisions of the 
zoning ordinance of the county set out in appendix A to this Code.

Animal Control Officer means the County Sheriff, any lawful deputy of the 
said Sheriff, any county constable, and any other person designated by the 
County Sheriff or the County Administrator to carry out and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter.

Animal shelter means any premises designated by the county governing 
body for the purpose of impounding, caring for or destroying dogs held under 
authority of this article.

Dogs means any member of the canine family four months or more of age.
Known and knowingly shall include information from previous occurrences 

or complaints which are known or should have been known and information 
generally known or readily available about and characteristic of the particular 
breed of animal in question.

Running at-large. A dog shall be deemed to be "running at-large" unless it 
is under restraint.

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a 
chain, cable, rope, running line, harness or similar devise. It shall not include 
the use of an appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include appropriate 
leashes attached to trolley lines.

Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley 
stop points suspended at least three feet above the dog’s head which allows 
five feet lateral movement for the dog on each side of the primary trolley line 
as measured on the ground.  The secondary line attached to the dog shall have 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
a rolling trolley freely moveable a distance of at least ten feet along the 
primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and swivels at both 
ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter 
and may restrain only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of 
nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted 
so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.    

Under restraint. A dog shall be deemed to be "under restraint" if on the 
premises of the owner or keeper or if accompanied by its owner or keeper and 
under the physical control of the owner or keeper by means of a leash or other 
similar restraining device, or under the active control of the owner or trainer 
while hunting or being trained and while on property of the owner or with the 
property owner's permission.

Vicious dog means any dog evidencing an abnormal inclination to attack 
persons or animals without provocation.
(Code 1981, § 5.101; Code 1985, § 4-16; Ord. No. 94-261, § 1, 8-23-1994)

6-20

Sec. 6-20. Certain actions unlawful.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any dog owner or other person with custody 

and control of a dog to allow his dog or a dog under his custody and control 
to run at-large off property owned, rented or controlled by such person within 
the unincorporated areas of the county.

(b) It shall be unlawful in the county for any dog owner or person with 
custody and control of such dog to allow a female dog to run at-large during 
estrus or the heat period.

(c) It shall be unlawful to own or keep a vicious dog within the confines 
of the county unless such vicious dog is securely muzzled or unless under 
restraint by a fence, chain, leash, or other means, so that such dog cannot 
reach persons not on land owned, leased or controlled by him.

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon any dog in the county.
(e) It shall be unlawful for any person to take or remove or attempt to 

rescue, seize, or deliver a dog from the custody and control of an animal 
control officer when any such dog shall have been seized under the provisions 
of this article; such conduct shall be deemed to be interfering with an animal 
control officer in the performance of his duty and shall be punishable as 
provided by law for such offense.

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, 
restrain or otherwise cause an unattended dog to be fastened, chained, tied or 
restrained without limitation to houses, trees, garages or other stationary or 



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:5

immobile objects by means of a chain, cable rope, running line, harness or 
other physical restraint for the purpose of confinement except in circumstance 
in which all of the following requirement are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and 
not directly to the dog’s neck.  All collars used must be made of nylon, 
leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as 
not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck. The tether 
must be at least 15 feet in length and positioned so that, at its greatest 
length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a 
swivel on at least one end of the tether to minimize tangling.
(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and 
water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather 
conditions including, but not limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing 
temperatures, hurricanes, thunderstorms or floods.
(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road 
or sidewalk and not in an area open to teasing or attacks, or where the 
ground is continuously wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be tethered in 
a manner that will prevent the dog from leaving the owner’s property.
(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must 
be tethered separately with sufficient space placed between the dogs to 
ensure that there is no contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working 
to be tethered when supervised by the owner or a person with custody and 
control of the dog.      

(Code 1981, 5.102(b), 5.014; Code 1985, § 4-17; Ord. No. 85-138, § 1,
6-11-1985; Ord. No. 88-175, § 1, 6-14-1988; Ord. No. 94-261, § 3, 8-23-1994; Ord. 
No. 04-537, 7-27-2004)

Sec. 6-21. Enforcement of article.
The County Administrator is authorized and directed to employ such 

personnel and provide such equipment as are, in his opinion, necessary to 
properly enforce the provisions of this article. Before any funds are expended 
or personnel employed, approval by the County Council must first be 
obtained. In addition, the County Sheriff, and lawful deputy of the Sheriff, 
and any county constable (unless contrary to the terms of the commission of 
said county constable) shall each be authorized to enforce the provisions of 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
this article along with such other persons as directed to do so by the County 
Administrator.
(Code 1981, § 5.103; Code 1985, § 4-18; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-22. Responsibility for damage and injury.
Whenever any dog shall go upon lands other than those leased, occupied, 

or controlled by his owner or keeper and cause property damage or personal 
injury thereon, such dog may be seized by the animal control officer at the 
request or complaint of the freeholder, his tenant, agent, or representative, of

CD6:4

6-24

the land upon which the personal injury or damage was caused, and the owner 
of such trespassing dog shall be liable for all damages sustained and for the 
expenses of seizure and maintenance as herein provided. Such damages and 
expenses shall be recoverable by appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, and a lien shall exist upon any such trespassing dog in favor of 
any injured person for such damages to person or property and for all expenses 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, which lien shall have 
preference over all other liens, claims or encumbrances upon such dog.
(Code 1981, § 5.106; Code 1985, § 4-19; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.

(a) After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been 
impounded in the animal shelter for ten days and is unclaimed by its 
owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a humane form 
of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable , or 
such dog that has been impounded for six days may be turned over to any 
organization established for the purpose of caring for animals such as the 
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or .   to any person who 
is approved to adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective 
adoption/rescue policies and procedures, provided the requirements of 
S.C.Code Ann. 47-3-60 (2017) or any other state statute, do not require 
impoundment for a longer period.   Complete records shall be kept by 
animal shelter officials as to the disposition of all animals impounded. 
(Code 1981, § 5.107; Code 1985, § 4-20)

(b) This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees 
or volunteers under the supervision of the County Administrator.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:7

Sec. 6-24. Nuisance animals.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, partnership, or other 

entity within the unincorporated limits of the county to own, keep, possess or 
maintain an animal in such a manner so as to constitute a public nuisance. 
The following acts or actions, whether of omission or commission, by an 
owner or possessor of any animal are hereby declared to be a public nuisance 
(a "nuisance") and to be unlawful:

(1) Failure to exercise sufficient restraint necessary to control an animal as 
required by any provision of section 6-20.

(2) Allowing or permitting an animal to repeatedly damage the property of 
anyone other than its owner, including, but not limited to, turning over 
garbage containers or damaging gardens, flowers, or vegetables.

(3) Failure to maintain an animal which is known or should be known to 
the owner or person in control thereof to be dangerous in a manner other 
than that which is described in section 6-20(c).

(4) Maintaining an animal in an environment of unsanitary conditions 
which results in odors that are offensive or dangerous to such animal, 
adjacent landowners or occupants, or to the general public health, 
welfare, or safety.

6-24

(5) Maintaining property in a manner that is offensive, annoying or 
dangerous to the public health, safety or welfare of the community 
because of the number, type, variety, density or location of the animals 
on the property.

(6) Allowing or permitting an animal to bark, whine, or howl in an 
excessive, unwarranted and continuous fashion, or make other noise in 
such manner so as to result in repeated serious annoyance or 
interference with the reasonable use and enjoyment of any neighboring 
property.

(7) Knowingly or carelessly maintaining an animal that is diseased and 
dangerous to the public health.

(8) Maintaining an animal that habitually or repeatedly chases, snaps at, 
bites, attempts to bite, attacks, or barks at pedestrians, persons on 
bicycles or vehicles in a street, road, or highway used by the public or 



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE
on property not owned or under the control of the owner or person in 
control of such animal.

(9) Maintaining an animal that injures persons or property of the general 
public except on property owned or under control of the owner of said 
animal.

(10) Maintaining an animal which threatens the safety of the general public 
where such animal has demonstrated activities or health problems in 
the past where the owner or person in control of such animal was aware 
or should have been aware of such threat.

(11) Knowingly maintaining an animal that unreasonably and repeatedly 
interferes with a person's enjoyment of that person's property without 
the consent or acquiescence of such person.

(12) Maintaining an animal which poses a known and unreasonable danger 
to other animals which are maintained as required by law.

(b) An animal which has been determined to be a habitual nuisance by 
an animal control officer may be impounded and may not be returned to the 
owner thereof until the owner can produce evidence to demonstrate that the 
situation creating the nuisance has been abated and the owner pays to the 
county reasonable costs and expenses related to the impoundment of such an 
animal.

(c) Every female canine animal in estrus (commonly referred to as 
being "in heat") shall be kept confined in a building or in a secure enclosure 
and will not be kept in a manner as will create a nuisance by attracting and 
being available for contact with other canine animals. An intentional or 
repeated failure to comply with this subsection shall be unlawful.
(Code 1985, § 4-21; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

CD6:6

6-85

Sec. 6-25. Abandonment.
It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon or otherwise fail to provide 

for the reasonable care or humane disposal of an animal in any of the 
unincorporated areas of the county.
(Code 1985, § 4-22; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-26. Interference with animal control officers.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:9

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with, hinder, or molest any 
animal control officer in the performance of the duty of such officer or to 
cause or attempt to cause the release of any animal in the custody of such 
officer without the consent of such officer.
(Code 1985, § 4-23; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-27. Penalties for violation.
The violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. Each day 
of violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a separate offense. 
Each animal kept, owned, controlled or otherwise caused or permitted to be 
involved in a violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 
separate offense. (Code 1985, § 4-24; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Secs. 6-28—6-84. Reserved.

ARTICLE 111. RABIES CONTROL*

Sec. 6-85. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal control officer means the person designated by the county to enforce 
this article.

Pet means only domesticated species of carnivores.
(Code 1985, § 4-36)

*State law references—Notice to health department of animal possibly affected 
by rabies, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-80; reporting animal bite, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-90; confinement, exam, or destruction of biting animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-100; confinement of bitten animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-110.



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:10

6-86

Sec. 6-86. Inoculation; certificate; tags.
(a) No person shall own, keep, or harbor any pet within the county for 

longer than 60 days unless such pet has been inoculated against rabies as 
provided in this section.

(b) Every owner of a pet will have his pet inoculated against rabies 
each year.

(c) A state board of health certificate of pet rabies vaccination will be 
issued by a licensed graduate veterinarian for each pet stating the name and 
address of the owner, the name, breed, color and markings, age, sex of the 
animal, and the veterinary or pharmaceutical control number of the 
vaccination.

(d) Coincident with the issuance of the certificate, the licensed 
graduate veterinarian shall also furnish a serially numbered metal license tag 
bearing the same number and year as the certificate. The metal license tag 
shall bear the name of the veterinarian who administered the vaccination and 
shall at all times be attached to a collar or harness worn by the pet for which 
the certificate and tag has been issued.

(e) The owner shall have a valid certificate of rabies immunization 
readily available for inspection by competent authority at all times.

(f) In the event that a rabies tag is lost, the owner will obtain a 
duplicate tag without delay.

(g) If there is a change in ownership of a pet during the valid period of 
immunization, the new owner may have the current certificate of 
immunization transferred to his name.

(h) A certificate or rabies immunization issued by a licensed 
veterinarian from another state will be accepted as valid evidence provided it 
is less than a year old.

(i) It shall be unlawful for any owner of any pet which has not been 
inoculated as required by this division to allow it to run at-large. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-37)

Sec. 6-87. Owners, etc., required to notify authorities of suspected 
rabid animals.



ANIMALS AND FOWL § 

CD6:11

Whenever a pet or other animal is affected by rabies or suspected of being 
affected by rabies or has been bitten by an animal known or suspected to be 
affected by rabies, the owner of the animal or any person having knowledge 
thereof shall forthwith notify the animal control officer and the county health 
department stating precisely where the animal may be found. (Code 1985, § 
4-38)

6-91

Sec. 6-88. Animal control officer to arrange for confinement of 
animal which has bitten a person.

The animal control officer, in conjunction with the county health 
department, shall arrange for the supervised confinement of any pet or other 
animal which has bitten a person. Such confinement may be on the premises 
of the owner if the owner will sign an agreement assuming total 
responsibility for the safe confinement of the pet or other animal. 
Confinement may be at the county animal shelter, a private animal shelter, 
veterinary hospital, or humane society shelter at the owner's option and 
expense. (Code 1985, § 4-39)

Sec. 6-89. Required period of confinement of animal which has 
bitten a person; examination during confinement.

Any pet or other animal which has bitten a person must be confined for a 
period of at least ten days. The county health department or the animal 
control officer will be permitted by the owner of such pet or animal to 
examine the animal at any time and daily if desired within the ten-day period 
of confinement to determine whether such animal shows symptoms of 
rabies. No person shall obstruct or interfere with the animal control officer 
or the county health department in making such examination. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-40)

Sec. 6-90. Notice of owner of animal, other than a dog or cat, which 
has attacked or bitten a person.

In case of a pet other than a dog or cat, which has attacked or bitten a 
person, the county health department shall serve notice upon the owner of 
such pet that the owner shall have the animal euthanized immediately and 
have the brain submitted for rabies examination. (Code 1985, § 4-41)



§ SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:12

Sec. 6-91. Confinement of animals bitten by known or suspected 
rabid animals.

The county health department shall serve notice in writing upon the owner 
of a pet or other animal known to have been bitten by an animal known or 
suspected of being affected by rabies requiring the owner to confine such 
animal for a period of not less than six months; except that, animals properly 
treated with anti-rabic vaccine shall be confined for a period of not less than 
three months. (Code 1985, § 4-42)

6-92

Sec. 6-92. Killing or removing from jurisdiction suspected rabid 
animals prohibited; exception.

No person shall kill, or cause to be killed, any rabid pet or other animal, or 
one suspected of having been exposed to rabies or which has bitten a person, 
nor remove such pet or animal from the jurisdiction of the county without 
written permission of the county health department. An exception to the 
preceding requirement is in the event of the possibility of the animal's escape 
or additional biting in which case the animal is to be killed and the county 
health department notified immediately.
(Code 1985, § 4-43)

Sec. 6-93. Penalty.
The violation of any section of this article shall constitute a misdemeanor 

and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. (Code 1985, § 4-44)



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:3

6-19

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL

Secs. 6-1—6-18. Reserved.

ARTICLE 11. DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS

Sec. 6-19. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal shall exclude any cow, ox, horse, donkey, mule, sheep, goat, 
chicken, turkey, quail, or similar farm animal which is raised or used for 
agricultural purposes where such animal is kept and maintained within an 
enclosed area and located in compliance with all applicable provisions of the 
zoning ordinance of the county set out in appendix A to this Code.

Animal Control Officer means the County Sheriff, any lawful deputy of the 
said Sheriff, any county constable, and any other person designated by the 
County Sheriff or the County Administrator to carry out and enforce the 
provisions of this chapter.

Animal shelter means any premises designated by the county governing 
body for the purpose of impounding, caring for or destroying dogs held under 
authority of this article.

Dogs means any member of the canine family four months or more of age.
Known and knowingly shall include information from previous occurrences 

or complaints which are known or should have been known and information 
generally known or readily available about and characteristic of the particular 
breed of animal in question.

Running at-large. A dog shall be deemed to be "running at-large" unless it 
is under restraint.

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a 
chain, cable, rope, running line, harness or similar devise. It shall not include 
the use of an appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include appropriate 
leashes attached to trolley lines.

Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley 
stop points suspended at least three feet above the dog’s head which allows 
five feet lateral movement for the dog on each side of the primary trolley line 
as measured on the ground.  The secondary line attached to the dog shall have 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
a rolling trolley freely moveable a distance of at least ten feet along the 
primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and swivels at both 
ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter 
and may restrain only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of 
nylon, leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted 
so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.    

Under restraint. A dog shall be deemed to be "under restraint" if on the 
premises of the owner or keeper or if accompanied by its owner or keeper and 
under the physical control of the owner or keeper by means of a leash or other 
similar restraining device, or under the active control of the owner or trainer 
while hunting or being trained and while on property of the owner or with the 
property owner's permission.

Vicious dog means any dog evidencing an abnormal inclination to attack 
persons or animals without provocation.
(Code 1981, § 5.101; Code 1985, § 4-16; Ord. No. 94-261, § 1, 8-23-1994)

6-20

Sec. 6-20. Certain actions unlawful.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any dog owner or other person with custody 

and control of a dog to allow his dog or a dog under his custody and control 
to run at-large off property owned, rented or controlled by such person within 
the unincorporated areas of the county.

(b) It shall be unlawful in the county for any dog owner or person with 
custody and control of such dog to allow a female dog to run at-large during 
estrus or the heat period.

(c) It shall be unlawful to own or keep a vicious dog within the confines 
of the county unless such vicious dog is securely muzzled or unless under 
restraint by a fence, chain, leash, or other means, so that such dog cannot 
reach persons not on land owned, leased or controlled by him.

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon any dog in the county.
(e) It shall be unlawful for any person to take or remove or attempt to 

rescue, seize, or deliver a dog from the custody and control of an animal 
control officer when any such dog shall have been seized under the provisions 
of this article; such conduct shall be deemed to be interfering with an animal 
control officer in the performance of his duty and shall be punishable as 
provided by law for such offense.

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, 
restrain or otherwise cause an unattended dog to be fastened, chained, tied or 
restrained without limitation to houses, trees, garages or other stationary or 



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:5

immobile objects by means of a chain, cable rope, running line, harness or 
other physical restraint for the purpose of confinement except in circumstance 
in which all of the following requirement are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and 
not directly to the dog’s neck.  All collars used must be made of nylon, 
leather or other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as 
not to cause injury to the dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck. The tether 
must be at least 15 feet in length and positioned so that, at its greatest 
length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a 
swivel on at least one end of the tether to minimize tangling.
(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and 
water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather 
conditions including, but not limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing 
temperatures, hurricanes, thunderstorms or floods.
(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road 
or sidewalk and not in an area open to teasing or attacks, or where the 
ground is continuously wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be tethered in 
a manner that will prevent the dog from leaving the owner’s property.
(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must 
be tethered separately with sufficient space placed between the dogs to 
ensure that there is no contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working 
to be tethered when supervised by the owner or a person with custody and 
control of the dog.      

(Code 1981, 5.102(b), 5.014; Code 1985, § 4-17; Ord. No. 85-138, § 1,
6-11-1985; Ord. No. 88-175, § 1, 6-14-1988; Ord. No. 94-261, § 3, 8-23-1994; Ord. 
No. 04-537, 7-27-2004)

Sec. 6-21. Enforcement of article.
The County Administrator is authorized and directed to employ such 

personnel and provide such equipment as are, in his opinion, necessary to 
properly enforce the provisions of this article. Before any funds are expended 
or personnel employed, approval by the County Council must first be 
obtained. In addition, the County Sheriff, and lawful deputy of the Sheriff, 
and any county constable (unless contrary to the terms of the commission of 
said county constable) shall each be authorized to enforce the provisions of 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
this article along with such other persons as directed to do so by the County 
Administrator.
(Code 1981, § 5.103; Code 1985, § 4-18; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-22. Responsibility for damage and injury.
Whenever any dog shall go upon lands other than those leased, occupied, 

or controlled by his owner or keeper and cause property damage or personal 
injury thereon, such dog may be seized by the animal control officer at the 
request or complaint of the freeholder, his tenant, agent, or representative, of

CD6:4

6-24

the land upon which the personal injury or damage was caused, and the owner 
of such trespassing dog shall be liable for all damages sustained and for the 
expenses of seizure and maintenance as herein provided. Such damages and 
expenses shall be recoverable by appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, and a lien shall exist upon any such trespassing dog in favor of 
any injured person for such damages to person or property and for all expenses 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, which lien shall have 
preference over all other liens, claims or encumbrances upon such dog.
(Code 1981, § 5.106; Code 1985, § 4-19; Ord. No. 94-261, § 4, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.

(a) After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been 
impounded in the animal shelter for ten days and is unclaimed by its 
owner, the pound employees may dispose of such dog by a humane form 
of destruction.  However, any dog that is not positively identifiable that 
has been impounded for six days may be turned over to any organization 
established for the purpose of caring for animals such as the Society for 
the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or   to any person who is approved 
to adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective adoption/rescue policies 
and procedures, provided the requirements of S.C.Code Ann. 47-3-60 
(2017) or any other state statute, do not require impoundment for a longer 
period.   Complete records shall be kept by animal shelter officials as to 
the disposition of all animals impounded. (Code 1981, § 5.107; Code 1985, 
§ 4-20)

(b) This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees 
or volunteers under the supervision of the County Administrator.



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:7

Sec. 6-24. Nuisance animals.
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, corporation, partnership, or other 

entity within the unincorporated limits of the county to own, keep, possess or 
maintain an animal in such a manner so as to constitute a public nuisance. 
The following acts or actions, whether of omission or commission, by an 
owner or possessor of any animal are hereby declared to be a public nuisance 
(a "nuisance") and to be unlawful:

(1) Failure to exercise sufficient restraint necessary to control an animal as 
required by any provision of section 6-20.

(2) Allowing or permitting an animal to repeatedly damage the property of 
anyone other than its owner, including, but not limited to, turning over 
garbage containers or damaging gardens, flowers, or vegetables.

(3) Failure to maintain an animal which is known or should be known to 
the owner or person in control thereof to be dangerous in a manner other 
than that which is described in section 6-20(c).

(4) Maintaining an animal in an environment of unsanitary conditions 
which results in odors that are offensive or dangerous to such animal, 
adjacent landowners or occupants, or to the general public health, 
welfare, or safety.

6-24

(5) Maintaining property in a manner that is offensive, annoying or 
dangerous to the public health, safety or welfare of the community 
because of the number, type, variety, density or location of the animals 
on the property.

(6) Allowing or permitting an animal to bark, whine, or howl in an 
excessive, unwarranted and continuous fashion, or make other noise in 
such manner so as to result in repeated serious annoyance or 
interference with the reasonable use and enjoyment of any neighboring 
property.

(7) Knowingly or carelessly maintaining an animal that is diseased and 
dangerous to the public health.

(8) Maintaining an animal that habitually or repeatedly chases, snaps at, 
bites, attempts to bite, attacks, or barks at pedestrians, persons on 
bicycles or vehicles in a street, road, or highway used by the public or 



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE
on property not owned or under the control of the owner or person in 
control of such animal.

(9) Maintaining an animal that injures persons or property of the general 
public except on property owned or under control of the owner of said 
animal.

(10) Maintaining an animal which threatens the safety of the general public 
where such animal has demonstrated activities or health problems in 
the past where the owner or person in control of such animal was aware 
or should have been aware of such threat.

(11) Knowingly maintaining an animal that unreasonably and repeatedly 
interferes with a person's enjoyment of that person's property without 
the consent or acquiescence of such person.

(12) Maintaining an animal which poses a known and unreasonable danger 
to other animals which are maintained as required by law.

(b) An animal which has been determined to be a habitual nuisance by 
an animal control officer may be impounded and may not be returned to the 
owner thereof until the owner can produce evidence to demonstrate that the 
situation creating the nuisance has been abated and the owner pays to the 
county reasonable costs and expenses related to the impoundment of such an 
animal.

(c) Every female canine animal in estrus (commonly referred to as 
being "in heat") shall be kept confined in a building or in a secure enclosure 
and will not be kept in a manner as will create a nuisance by attracting and 
being available for contact with other canine animals. An intentional or 
repeated failure to comply with this subsection shall be unlawful.
(Code 1985, § 4-21; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

CD6:6

6-85

Sec. 6-25. Abandonment.
It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon or otherwise fail to provide 

for the reasonable care or humane disposal of an animal in any of the 
unincorporated areas of the county.
(Code 1985, § 4-22; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-26. Interference with animal control officers.



ANIMALS AND FOWL

CD6:9

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with, hinder, or molest any 
animal control officer in the performance of the duty of such officer or to 
cause or attempt to cause the release of any animal in the custody of such 
officer without the consent of such officer.
(Code 1985, § 4-23; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Sec. 6-27. Penalties for violation.
The violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 

misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. Each day 
of violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a separate offense. 
Each animal kept, owned, controlled or otherwise caused or permitted to be 
involved in a violation of any provision of this article shall constitute a 
separate offense. (Code 1985, § 4-24; Ord. No. 94-261, § 6, 8-23-1994)

Secs. 6-28—6-84. Reserved.

ARTICLE 111. RABIES CONTROL*

Sec. 6-85. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Animal control officer means the person designated by the county to enforce 
this article.

Pet means only domesticated species of carnivores.
(Code 1985, § 4-36)

*State law references—Notice to health department of animal possibly affected 
by rabies, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-80; reporting animal bite, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-90; confinement, exam, or destruction of biting animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 
47-5-100; confinement of bitten animal, S.C. Code 1976, § 47-5-110.



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:10

6-86

Sec. 6-86. Inoculation; certificate; tags.
(a) No person shall own, keep, or harbor any pet within the county for 

longer than 60 days unless such pet has been inoculated against rabies as 
provided in this section.

(b) Every owner of a pet will have his pet inoculated against rabies 
each year.

(c) A state board of health certificate of pet rabies vaccination will be 
issued by a licensed graduate veterinarian for each pet stating the name and 
address of the owner, the name, breed, color and markings, age, sex of the 
animal, and the veterinary or pharmaceutical control number of the 
vaccination.

(d) Coincident with the issuance of the certificate, the licensed 
graduate veterinarian shall also furnish a serially numbered metal license tag 
bearing the same number and year as the certificate. The metal license tag 
shall bear the name of the veterinarian who administered the vaccination and 
shall at all times be attached to a collar or harness worn by the pet for which 
the certificate and tag has been issued.

(e) The owner shall have a valid certificate of rabies immunization 
readily available for inspection by competent authority at all times.

(f) In the event that a rabies tag is lost, the owner will obtain a 
duplicate tag without delay.

(g) If there is a change in ownership of a pet during the valid period of 
immunization, the new owner may have the current certificate of 
immunization transferred to his name.

(h) A certificate or rabies immunization issued by a licensed 
veterinarian from another state will be accepted as valid evidence provided it 
is less than a year old.

(i) It shall be unlawful for any owner of any pet which has not been 
inoculated as required by this division to allow it to run at-large. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-37)

Sec. 6-87. Owners, etc., required to notify authorities of suspected 
rabid animals.



ANIMALS AND FOWL  

CD6:11

Whenever a pet or other animal is affected by rabies or suspected of being 
affected by rabies or has been bitten by an animal known or suspected to be 
affected by rabies, the owner of the animal or any person having knowledge 
thereof shall forthwith notify the animal control officer and the county health 
department stating precisely where the animal may be found. (Code 1985, § 
4-38)

6-91

Sec. 6-88. Animal control officer to arrange for confinement of 
animal which has bitten a person.

The animal control officer, in conjunction with the county health 
department, shall arrange for the supervised confinement of any pet or other 
animal which has bitten a person. Such confinement may be on the premises 
of the owner if the owner will sign an agreement assuming total 
responsibility for the safe confinement of the pet or other animal. 
Confinement may be at the county animal shelter, a private animal shelter, 
veterinary hospital, or humane society shelter at the owner's option and 
expense. (Code 1985, § 4-39)

Sec. 6-89. Required period of confinement of animal which has 
bitten a person; examination during confinement.

Any pet or other animal which has bitten a person must be confined for a 
period of at least ten days. The county health department or the animal 
control officer will be permitted by the owner of such pet or animal to 
examine the animal at any time and daily if desired within the ten-day period 
of confinement to determine whether such animal shows symptoms of 
rabies. No person shall obstruct or interfere with the animal control officer 
or the county health department in making such examination. (Code 1985, 
§ 4-40)

Sec. 6-90. Notice of owner of animal, other than a dog or cat, which 
has attacked or bitten a person.

In case of a pet other than a dog or cat, which has attacked or bitten a 
person, the county health department shall serve notice upon the owner of 
such pet that the owner shall have the animal euthanized immediately and 
have the brain submitted for rabies examination. (Code 1985, § 4-41)



 SUMTER COUNTY CODE

CD6:12

Sec. 6-91. Confinement of animals bitten by known or suspected 
rabid animals.

The county health department shall serve notice in writing upon the owner 
of a pet or other animal known to have been bitten by an animal known or 
suspected of being affected by rabies requiring the owner to confine such 
animal for a period of not less than six months; except that, animals properly 
treated with anti-rabic vaccine shall be confined for a period of not less than 
three months. (Code 1985, § 4-42)

6-92

Sec. 6-92. Killing or removing from jurisdiction suspected rabid 
animals prohibited; exception.

No person shall kill, or cause to be killed, any rabid pet or other animal, or 
one suspected of having been exposed to rabies or which has bitten a person, 
nor remove such pet or animal from the jurisdiction of the county without 
written permission of the county health department. An exception to the 
preceding requirement is in the event of the possibility of the animal's escape 
or additional biting in which case the animal is to be killed and the county 
health department notified immediately.
(Code 1985, § 4-43)

Sec. 6-93. Penalty.
The violation of any section of this article shall constitute a misdemeanor 

and shall be punishable as provided in section 1-8. (Code 1985, § 4-44)



Agenda
Sumter County Council

Budget Workshop
Tuesday, April 23, 2019 - Held at 5:00 p.m.
County Administration Building, Third Floor

County Council Chambers -- 13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

I. Call to Order – The Honorable James T. McCain, Jr., Chairman

II. Invocation: Member of Council, Member of Staff, or Member of the Public 

III. Pledge Of Allegiance:

IV. Action On Agenda:  Tuesday, April 23, 2019

V. New Business:  

1. Budget Discussions Concerning Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Revenue Projections And Possible 
Actions If Necessary.  

2. Executive Session:  It May Be Is Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An 
Economic Development Matter, A Legal Briefing, Personnel/Employment Matter, Or To 
Discuss Other Items Appropriate For Executive Session And Take Actions Thereafter.

3. Additional Agenda Item: ___________________________________________

VI. Old Business

1. None

VII. Adjournment



















2019
POLICE WEEKPOLICE WEEKPOLICE WEEKPOLICE WEEKPOLICE WEEKPOLICE WEEK

NATIONALNATIONALNATIONAL

 Richland County 
Sheriff’s Department

$10 in advance | $12 at the door

Lt. James Dukes | (803) 436-2048 
 
Staff Sgt. James Sinkler | (803) 436-2723 
 
Sr. Cpl. Scott Smith | (803) 436-2050 
 
Deputy Isaac McLeod | (803) 774-1578 
 
Deputy Cynthia Gonzalez | (803) 436-2022

TICKETSTICKETSTICKETS

Contact: Contact: Contact: 
Sheriff Leon Lott

Tuesday, May 14 
7:30 a.m. 

 
Church of the Holy Comforter 

213 N. Main St. 
 Sumter, SC

Prayer Breakfast



































 

 

 

 

I. INVOCATION – CHAIRMAN’S CHOICE 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MARCH 27, 2019 
 

III. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. MAJOR SITE PLAN 
 

MSP-19-12, Hartt Transportation (County) 
Request for Major Site Plan approval for a truck and trailer storage lot (2 Phases) on 
property located at 831 Cockerill Rd. The property is represented by Tax Map # 208-
00-03-003. 

 

2. REZONINGS 
 

RZ-19-05, 526 Godwin St. (County) 
Request to rezone a +/-4.98 acre parcel located at 526 Godwin St. from Residential-
15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC). The property is represented by Tax map 
# 245-06-02-003. 
. 

RZ-19-06, 1449 Camden Hwy. (County) 
Request to rezone +/-45.78 acres located at 1449 Camden Hwy. from Agricultural 
Conservation (AC) to Residential-15 (R-15). The property is represented by Tax Map 
# 202-00-03-030 (part). 

 

3. SUBDIVISIONS 
 
SD-19-01, Oakland Acres Townhouses (City) 
A request for preliminary plat approval to develop 55 lot (110 units) single family  
attached townhouse subdivision on property located on W. Oakland Ave. at Lynam  
Rd. The property is represented by Tax Map # 206-00-02-011. 

 

4. ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 

OA-19-06, Art Studios in the R-6 District (City) 

Amend Article 3, Section 3.c.4 and Article 5, Section 5.b.3.q to add Artists’ studios, 
except commercial and medical with SIC Code 8999 and art schools, except 
commercial with SIC Code 8299 as  special exception uses in the R-6 District.   
   

IV. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

SUMTER CITY-COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 24, 2019 @ 3:00 P.M. 

FOURTH FLOOR CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
SUMTER OPERA HOUSE 

21 N. MAIN STREET 
 














	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	1) Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council

	2. INVOCATION:  Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, April 9, 2019
	Minutes April 9, 2019


	6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
	1) RZ-19-04 – Second Reading/Public Hearing -- Beulah
	4-23-19 Agenda
	RZ-19-04 - 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County) 2nd Rdg


	7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	1) 19-907 – An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code
	Ordinance 19-907 - AMENDMENT to Sumter County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, Article II, Dogs and Other Animals, Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23
	Animals - Chapter Six of the Sumter County Code 2010 redline 190403
	Animals - Chapter Six of the Sumter County Code 2010 smooth 190403


	8. NEW BUSINESS:
	1) Recognition of Ms. Valerie A. Brunson, Sumter Coun
	SCDA-VA

	2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session

	9. OLD BUSINESS:
	1) 19-907 – Third Reading -- An Ordinance To Amend Su
	Ordinance 19-907 - AMENDMENT to Sumter County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, Article II, Dogs and Other Animals, Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23
	Animals - Chapter Six of the Sumter County Code 2010 redline 190403
	Animals - Chapter Six of the Sumter County Code 2010 smooth 190403


	10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
	1) Budget Workshop To Be Held At 5:00 p.m. On Tuesday
	Agenda Budget Workshop April 23, 2019

	2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Tra

	11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
	1) Sumter County Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	SCSO March 2019 monthly

	2) Mayor's Prayer Breakfast
	2019 Mayor's Prayer Breakfast Flyer File

	3) Law Enforcement Prayer Breakfast
	2019 Prayer Breakfast Flyer File

	4) Mary McLeod Bethune Festival/Celebration
	BETHUNE FESTIVAL PIC CHANDRA & ALLISON
	BETHUNE FESTIVAL SATURDAY CHANDRA & ALLISON

	5) Building Department Report
	March 2019 Bldg Rpt

	6) Planning Commission Meeting
	PC-4-24-19 Agenda
	PC Minutes 3-27-19


	12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
	13. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	14. ADJOURNMENT:



